ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2015
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Louise Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Liz Vazquez
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 13

"An Act requiring notice of the postage required to nmail an
absentee ballot on the envelope provided by the division of
el ections for returning an absentee ballot; and repealing the
authority to include certain material from a political party in
the el ection panphlet."”

- MOVED CSHB 13(STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO. 1
"An Act declaring the Arctic policy of the state.™

- MOVED CSHB 1(EDA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 65

"An Act relating to the disclosure of financial information by
persons who are subject to the Legislative Ethics Act and by
certain public officers, public enployees, and candidates for
public office."

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED TO 2/ 12/ 15
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 13

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTI ON PAMPHLETS AND ABSENTEE BALLOTS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN, GARA

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2015



01/ 21/ 15 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H) STA

02/ 05/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 05/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 05/ 15 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 10/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 1

SHORT TITLE: STATE ARCTI C POLI CY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HERRON

01/ 21/ 15 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (H) EDA, STA

01/ 27/ 15 (H) EDA AT 10: 15 AM BARNES 124

01/ 27/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 27/ 15 (H) M NUTE( EDA)

02/ 05/ 15 (H) EDA AT 11:30 AM BARNES 124

02/ 05/ 15 (H) Moved CSHB 1(EDA) Qut of Committee

02/ 05/ 15 (H) M NUTE( EDA)

02/ 06/ 15 (H) EDA RPT CS(EDA) 1DP 5NR

02/ 06/ 15 (H) DP:  HERRON

02/ 06/ 15 (H) NR  JOHNSON, TILTON, WOOL, ORTIZ,
STUTES

02/ 10/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prime sponsor, presented HB 1.

NI LS ANDREASSEN, Executive Director

Institute of the North

Al aska Arctic Policy Conmm ssion, Menber

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 1.

ROB EARL, Staff
Representati ve Bob Herron
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- February 10, 2015



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of Representative Herron, prine
sponsor, offered a sectional analysis during the hearing on HB
1.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:07:46 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representatives Keller, Kreiss-
Tonkins, Stutes, Talerico, and Lynn were present at the call to
order. Representative Gruenberg arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 13- ELECTI ON PAMPHLETS AND ABSENTEE BALLOTS

8:08: 40 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO. 13, "An Act requiring notice of the postage required to
mai | an absentee ballot on the envel ope provided by the division
of elections for returning an absentee ballot; and repealing the
authority to include certain nmaterial froma political party in
the el ection panphlet.”

[Before the committee was the proposed conmittee substitute
(CS), Version 29-LS0091\E, Bullard, 2/3/15, which was adopted by
the commttee as a work draft on 2/5/15.]

CHAIR LYNN, as joint prinme sponsor, presented HB 13. He said

the official election panphlet: hel ps inform voters; allows
candidates to public office to display their photo, a short
bi ogr aphy, and their posi tion st atement ; and provi des
information on ballot initiatives, "pro" and "con" statenents,
and judicial retention. He said people do not vote for
political parties, yet the current election panphlet allows
advertisement from political parties, which is an open

invitation for attack advertisenents ("ads") on any candi date or
issue on the ballot. He warned that w thout change, the attacks
woul d escalate "as one party tries to outdo the other." He
opined that the election panphlet is no place for political
parties to advertise, and there is no shortage of venues in
whi ch those parties can place ads. He asked the commttee for
its support for HB 13.

8:11: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE STUTES noved to report CSHB 13, Version 29-
LSO091\E, Bullard, 2/3/15, out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and t he acconpanying fiscal notes.

8:11: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER objected to state that he does not find
the political ads in the election panphlet inappropriate. He
t hen renoved his objection.

8:.12: 08 AM
CHAIR LYNN announced there being no further objection, CSHB
13(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing

Commi tt ee.

HB 1- STATE ARCTI C POLI CY

8:12:17 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 1, "An Act declaring the Arctic policy of the state.”
[ Before the committee was CSHB 1( EDA). ]

8:12:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented HB 1. He said the legislature created the
Al aska Arctic Policy Conmission (AAPC) in the spring of 2012,
via House Concurrent Resolution 23, and the nmandate was to
release a final report on January 30, 2015, and introduce a bil

stating Alaska's Arctic policy. He noted that [HB 1] had been

through one commttee of referral. He relayed that the products
rel eased on January 30 were: a final report, an executive
summary, and an inplenentation plan. Representative Herron
stated that HB 1 neets the statutory requirenent of introducing
an Arctic policy bill for the legislature to consider. He said
it was pre-filed and was a product of the AAPC, followi ng two
years of vigorous dialog. He said Section 1 is legislative

intent, while Section 2 would "go into the blue books."
Representative Herron stated that HB 1 would put Al askans first,
strengthen the state's position with the federal governnent and
other Arctic nations, and lead to economc betternent in
Al aska's Arctic region.

8:14:46 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON noted that his staff was available to
offer a sectional analysis of HB 1. Further, he said Nls
Andr eassen, an AAPC nenber and executive director of Institute
of the North, and Dr. Butler were avail able for questions.

8:15: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON hi ghl i ghted the four inportant elenments of
Al aska's Arctic policy under HB 1, which read as follows [from
t he sponsor statenent, original punctuation provided]:

1) Uphold the state's commitnment to econonically
vi br ant communities while nmaintaining a healthy
envi ronment ;

2) Collaborate wth all appropriate entities to
achieve transparent and inclusive Arctic decision-
maki ng;

3) Enhance Alaska's security by strengthening Arctic
safety; and

4) Value and strengthen the resilience of arctic
communities and respect & integrate the culture and
know edge of Arctic peopl es.

CHAIR LYNN said he would |i ke a sectional analysis.

8:16:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nentioned [the declaration of state Arctic
policy, beginning on page 2, line 25], and he asked if, by
supporting HB 1, he would be "throwing away ... sonme kind of

responsibility in the sense of constructive criticism™

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded that he does not think so. He
said this is a starting point to Alaska's Arctic policy and it
has to evolve. For exanple, he said there may be strategies
t hat becone avail able that Al aska may want to adopt.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked for a summary of the strategic
recommendations of the inplenentation plan developed by the
AAPC, so he could better understand what he was being asked to
support. He said he was aware that the commttee packet
i ncluded an inplenentation plan booklet. He enphasi zed that he
appreci ated Representative Herron's work on the comm ssion.

8:20: 31 AM

HOUSE STA COWM TTEE - 5- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded that the inplenmentation plan is
a valuable part of the report because it gives reconmendations
with justifications. He said the comm ssion explains who should
be the l|ead, the governor, soneone in a departnent, or the
| egi sl ature, describes the resources needed, and has "an
execution." This is followed by legislative action and an
evaluation. He said an individual |egislator or the |egislature
can take on the recommendation and see if it can work, but
another option is for the legislature to wait and not do
anyt hi ng. He stated, "That's what | believe is valuable wth
this." He said disagreenent is expected.

REPRESENTATIVE HERRON said the legislature should "think
Arctic," because it is the only state in the country that is
Arctic. He stated that the legislature has had to |earn about
the Arctic, and he thinks there was a shared fear anong nenbers
of the Northern Waters Task Force that "things were happening
around us without us being involved ... in the decision making."
The second audience to which the commission was naking
recomendati ons was the executive branch. The comm ssion was
al so meking recomendations to the federal government to work
with Alaska rather than "treating us like a junior partner.” He
told Representative Keller that the issue was | ooking at all the
recommendations as a starting point but not agreeing with them
all. He said work would be done to ensure that the state's
Arctic policy works for everyone in the state.

8:24: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that he had heard it said, "If
you're not at the table, you're on the nenu.”" He enphasized the
criticalness of Alaska's involvenent with Arctic policy.

8:25:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON relayed that he had been criticized by
some of the comments that he made over the last few years and
explained he is skeptical of Alaska's federal partners.
However, he said he felt that the legislature wants to be
involved in Arctic decisions. He said he advocated kicking the
door in and inviting Alaska where it had not been invited
instead of letting others decide the future of Al aska. He said
he knew there was not a person present who did not agree that
Al aska nust be invol ved. He said strategy has been conbined to
aim for success, but "it's a living docunent,” and this and
future legislatures nmust evolve with federal partners in terns
of Arctic policy.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2015



8:27:06 AM

CHAIR LYNN directed attention to page 1, line 13, which read as
fol |l ows: "residents of the state recognize the risks that cone
with climate variability". He asked if that was a politically
correct termfor gl obal warm ng.

8.27.31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered there are three [terns]: globa
war m ng, changing climate, and clinate change. He said there
were two canps in the conm ssion. One said the term should be
"changing climate," while the other said it should be "clinate
change. " He said as a co-chair he made a strategic decision

that "for wevery change in climte we're going to have a
reference to climte change, too."

CHAIR LYNN said there is hot debate over whether there is such a
thing as global warm ng or climte change. He recogni zed that
t here have been changes in climte, both warner and col der. He
said he does not want to get involved in that controversy,
because there have been clinmate changes since creation.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said a Senator on the conmm ssion remarked
that the climate has been changing for eons. He reiterated that
for every reference there woul d be an opposite reference.

8:29:21 AM

CHAIR LYNN indicated that the sponsor had nentioned the state's
| ong-tine support for the Law of the Sea Treaty. He offered his
understanding that the legislature had passed |egislation
regarding the treaty a few years ago. He asked, "Wuld that
docunent the term'long-term ?"

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he does not know how many tinmes
"we've passed a resolution,” but said that "we nade sure that it

wasn't unani nous." He said there are several |egislatures
that support not ratifying [the Law of the Sea Treaty]; however,
nore support ratification than do not.

8:30: 20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he would not object to noving the

bill; however, he said he is of the mnority that voted agai nst
the Law of the Sea Treaty. He explained his vote was because of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 10, 2015



the obligation it nmy put wus wunder in the context of
i nternational courts.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON replied that "we recognize that." He
indicated that it nmay be sone tine before the Law of the Sea
Treaty is ratified. He said, the provision you talk about is
wel | chronicl ed. He said he thinks what has been |earned over
the last couple years is that the U S. Senate should take a
careful look at it. He stated his belief that the treaty
strengthens our sovereignty on the open sea, but said he fully
recognizes that the United Nations mning law provision is
"unfortunate.” He said it would take 67 Senators to ratify the
Law of the Sea Treaty. He questioned whether Alaska's extending
continental shelf would cone under attack from others, if "we"
becone entrenched in not ratifying the treaty. He reenphasized
the inportance of recognizing the support but also recognizing
it 1s not unani nous.

8:33:41 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his wunderstanding that President Ronald
Reagan had opposed the Law of the Sea Treaty, but one of the
Presi dent Bushes supported it, even though those two Presidents
were of the same political party.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said President Reagan was initially
opposed to the treaty, but when he got the anendnents he
desired, he endorsed the treaty.

8:34:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG opined that the proposed |egislation
does not enphasize the inportance of the Law of the Sea Treaty.
He offered his understanding that the record would show that the
| egi sl ature had passed two resolutions supporting the treaty.
Further, he said he thinks the record would show that a strong
majority of the U S. Senate has traditionally supported it. He
recogni zed that Senator Lisa Miurkowski had |led the way for that
support. He posited that it is inportant that "we recogni ze the
i nportance of that to the country and to the state of Al aska."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG expressed concern that the proposed
| egislation does not address inportant environnental issues
sufficiently. One exanple he gave was regarding the significant
i npact mankind has had on global warm ng, the effects of which
he said have been seen in Alaska and with the polar ice cap. He
said he would like to see the bill strengthened to have nore

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2015



protection of the environment. He said he supports the work
t hat the AAPC has done thus far.

8:36:14 AM

CHAIR LYNN said the proposed legislation is about the AAPC, not
about what causes gl obal warm ng. He added that he does not
think he would like to see the discussion focus on the global
war m ng debat e.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG opined the fact that the proposed bil
| anguage does not say nore is, in itself, a policy statenent.

8:37:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded first to issue of the Law of the
Sea Treaty, which he reiterated is well-chronicled. He opi ned
that a menorandum from the legislature to the U S. Senate -
reflecting that although not unani nous, there has been support
for ratification - is sufficient. Regarding the environnent, he
said there is a strong statenent on page 3, line 5 which read
as foll ows:

(D) sustain current, and develop new,
approaches for responding to a changing climte, and
adapt to the chall enges of coastal erosion, permafrost
nmelt, and ocean acidification;

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON i ndicated that the conmission wanted to
enphasi ze the inportance of adapting to survival. He said the
comm ssion believes that in the codified portion of the proposed
legislation, it was succinct in listing those things that are
inmportant to Arctic policy; however, it did not want the policy
to be "so heavy in any one place."

8:40: 36 AM

NI LS ANDREASSEN, Executive Director, Institute of the North;
Menber , Al aska Arctic Policy Comm ssion, expressed his
appreciation to the sponsor for bringing forward HB 1. He said
he thought the sponsor had described the bal ance that was struck
in focusing on the Arctic for the benefit of Alaskans. Further,
he remarked that the questions of the conmmttee thus far had
highlighted the different elements of that bal ance. He said
this speaks to the careful negotiations within the conm ssion.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- February 10, 2015



MR. ANDREASSEN naned four elenments of the proposed |egislation

econoni ¢ devel opnent, necessity for col | aborati on and
cooperation, healthy communities, and healthy environnent. He
said all these elenents together provide prosperity and success
for Al aska. Regarding the issue of climte change and changi ng
climate, he said the proposed |egislation "has enphasized our
response to such a change and not attributed any causation to
it." He indicated that the conm ssion focuses on how to prepare
for i ssues that wil | af f ect Al askans. He said the
i npl enentation plan provides options regarding climte change.

MR. ANDREASSEN stated that the proposed |egislation highlights
the state's past support for and continued efforts around the
Law of the Sea Treaty. He said there was a |ot of deliberation
regarding the treaty and notes from prior neetings show that the
state wants results as it noves forward in pushing the federa
government toward ratification. He said the final report
hi ghli ghts some of those issues. He opined that the comm ssion
felt strongly that Alaska's policy legislation should not be
solely about what the federal governnment should do, but focus

nore on neeting the needs of Alaska. In the sane way, the bil
is not only about environnental change or protection, but
highlights the state's guarding of both. He said the

recommendation plan states a nunber of recomrendations for
supporting environmental protection and conservation access
i ssues.

8:44:19 AM

MR. ANDREASSEN enphasized that a "yes" vote on HB 1 would not
commt the person voting to the inplenentation plan, because the

plan is a "suite of options for future action.” He stated, "To
the extent that you're interested in any of these issues -
singularly or as a whole - you're able to draw from the
i npl enentation plan and nove an issue forward.” He said action
could occur from the legislature, from state agencies, and from
the business conmunity within the next two years. He said

nmoving the proposed legislation forward would send a strong
signal that the State of Alaska is interested in taking a
| eadership role in the Arctic and seeing changes benefit the
state, with state consultation at the forefront.

8:45: 20 AM

CHAIR LYNN said there woul d be an upcom ng sectional analysis.

8:45: 48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON, in response to Representative G uenberg

said the issue of subsistence is addressed on page 4, line 12.
He said subsistence is one of the topics the comm ssion decided
shoul d be covered under Alaska's Arctic policy. He said, "It
recogni zes the indigenous people, all our unique relationship to
the environment, and traditional ... way of life for food
security.” He recollected, as a legislative staffer in 1987,
heari ng people question in frustration why someone who is having
difficulty living in a certain part of the state doesn't just
nove to Anchorage. He said he knows that "everyone at the table
is invested in their community."” People have hones, businesses,
famlies, and a connection to the land in which they I|ive. He
said the aforenentioned |anguage says nore than its few lines
may suggest; it says a lot of things about all Al askans and
enphasi zes how i nportant being in Al aska is.

8:48: 34 AM

CHAIR LYNN said "we" don't want this or any other bill to danage
t he i ndi genous peopl e of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON indicated that that should also include
t hose who nay not be indigenous, but were born in Al aska.

8:48: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the itens in HB 1 were |isted
in order of priority.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answer no, they are all "nunber ones.™
8:49:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS noted that the value of the
culture and know edge of Arctic people is recognized in the
proposed | egislation. He expressed his desire to see Native
| anguages recogni zed, as wel|.

8:50: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he would not object, and he ventured
that woul d be an inportant addition.

8:51: 23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked, "Did the conm ssion consider this
guesti on?" Further, he questioned whether the comm ssion was
open to "other things."

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON answered that during strategic planning,
everyone on the commssion offered up many ideas that were
di scussed, and then the comm ssion narrowed down those ideas.
He recoll ected that the |anguage of indigenous people was one of
the topics considered, but it got incorporated into "recognize
Arctic indigenous people's cultures”.

8:52:49 AM

ROB EARL, Staff, Representative Bob Herron, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Herron, prime sponsor,
offered a sectional analysis on HB 1. He stated that in Section
1, there are eight findings and four statements of intent. He
highlighted the following: the third finding, which states that
Al askans are Arctic experts; the sixth finding, which states
that respect for indigenous peoples is critical to understanding
the Arctic; the eighth finding, which states that Al aska should
create and mamintain an official body to further develop Arctic
strategies and policies, which has already occurred; and the
third statenent of intent, which states that the Arctic policy
woul d serve as a guide for the inplenmentation policy.

8:54: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding Arctic policy of the state,
observed that the bill references the w shes of residents. He
asked if the comm ssion had considered what would be in the best
interest of Alaska as "a continuing geographic and ecosystem
t hr oughout the ages."

CHAIR LYNN said he assuned consideration had been given for
future generations.

8:56: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON stated that the intent of the Arctic
policy would be to help future generations and the environnent.
He added, "Probably woven into that is we don't want to be
treated |i ke a colony."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked about people who are not

residents of the state but have a real interest in what goes on
in Al aska.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON ventured that the end result would be
favorable to all parties. He said Alaska is part of a nation
that would share in the benefits from Alaska's resources;
however, he reiterated that Al aska should not be used as a
colony where resources are extracted with nothing left behind.
He said the comm ssion wants to see a healthy state that wll
continue to flourish.

8:58:32 AM

MR. EARL continued with the sectional analysis. He directed
attention to Section 2, and reviewed that paragraph (1) speaks
to economcally vibrant communities and a healthy environnent

whi ch includes ensuring |ocal benefits shown under subparagraph
(A). He highlighted subparagraph (C), regarding the attracting

of investnents, and subparagraph [(F)], which speaks to
maintaining a strong fisheries industry. He pointed out
paragraph (3), which Ilists the enhancenent of security in
[Alaska's Arctic region], including the increased safety of

marine transportation and the increased presence of the United
States Coast Guard, as shown under subparagraphs (B) and (D),
respectively. He returned to |language to which the bill sponsor
had brought attention, regarding the recognition of Arctic
i ndi genous peopl e's cul tures and rel ati onship to t he
envi ronment .

MR. EARL directed attention to |anguage beginning on page 4,
line 26, which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

(b) It is inportant to the state, as it
relates to the Arctic, to support the strategic
recommendations of the inplementation plan devel oped
by the Alaska Arctic Policy Commssion and to
encourage consideration of reconmendations devel oped

by the Alaska Arctic Policy Comn ssion. Priority
lines of effort for the Arctic policy of the state
i ncl ude

(1) pronoting economic and resource
devel opnent ;

(2) addressing the infrastructure and
response capacity gap in order to support the Arctic
regi on;

(3) supporting healthy communities; and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- February 10, 2015



(4) supporting existing and fostering
new science and research that aligns wth state
priorities for the Arctic.

MR. EARL directed attention to page 5, lines 6-10, which define
the neaning of Arctic, which read as follows [origina
punct uati on provided]:

(c) In this section, "Arctic" neans the area of
the state north of the Arctic Crcle, north and west
of the boundary formed by the Porcupine, Yukon, and
Kuskokwi m Rivers, all contiguous seas, including the
Arctic Ccean, and the Beaufort, Bering, and Chukchi
Seas, and the Aleutian Chain, except that, for the
purpose of international Arctic policy, "Arctic" means
the entirety of the state.

MR. EARL said after nuch discussion, the comm ssion decided to
"align the boundary with the federal definition,”™ which was
determ ned through federal |egislation in 1984.

9: 00: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS asked wher e t hat f eder al
definition was detern ned.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON offered his understanding that President
Ei senhower had been against "the entire state being a state.”
He said President Ei senhower had felt that anything north and
west of Porcupine, Yukon, Kuskokwim - "PYK |ine" - could not
support itself, while anything south of that had already proved
it could. He said Bob Atwood, John Butrovich, and Walter Hi cke
visited President Ei senhower to explain how his thought process
was flawed, and they and others convinced the President not to

bi sect Al aska. Representative Herron said history has shown
that the Arctic Ccean and the Bering Sea are inportant to each
ot her. He concluded, "That's why the definition cane - because

of that debate in the '50s."
9:03: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, regarding the bill sponsor's having
said that all the items in the bill have nunber one priority,
directed attention to page 4, line 29, which refers to "priority
lines of effort”. He asked specifically if the four itens
[| anguage provided previously] are truly equal in priority.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON confirnmed that is correct.
9:04: 15 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:04: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he was ready to nake a notion to nove
HB 1 out of committee.

9: 04: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS noved to adopt Amendnent 1, to
insert the follow ng | anguage on page 4, line 26: "docunent and
revitalize |anguages of Arctic indigenous peoples". He added
that it would be "in keeping with the thene of that section.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER objected for the purpose of discussion.
He asked Representative Kreiss-Tonkins exactly where the
proposed | anguage woul d be added.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWI NS reiterated page 4, |line 26.
9:06: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the proposed Anendnent 1 was
concept ual

9:06: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked to hear from the bill sponsor how
Amendnent 1 might fit.

9:07: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked if the proposed anendnent m ght have
been intended for page 4, lines 12-15.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS expl ai ned that he had thought the
proposed anmendnent could be "a new point"; however, he said he
could see the logic of noving it into the |anguage on lines 12-
15.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- February 10, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON reiterated that after discussion, the
comm ssion had incorporated Native |anguages into "indigenous
peopl es' cultures”; however, he said if it was the will of the
committee to add reference specifically to Native |anguages,
then he would recommend it be added to [subparagraph (A)], on
page 4, l|ines 12-15. He reenphasized that the Arctic neans the
entire state of Alaska; therefore, it should not be Arctic
i ndi genous | anguages, but should be indigenous |anguages of the
residents of Al aska.

9:09: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he thought the |anguage in Section
2, subsection (c), on page 5, Ilines 6-10, [text provided
previously], seened to state the opposite of what the bil
sponsor just stated. He offered his understanding that
Amendnent 1 was "not just international.” He suggested a

conform ng amendnent nay be necessary "to nmke sure that
that's covered within this definition."

9:10: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS, in response to Representative
Gruenberg, confirmed that the proposed amendnent was concept ual

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reviewed the concept of a conceptual
amendment .

9:11: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON suggest that Anmendnent 1 be wi thdrawn, and
he said he would sponsor an amendnent on the House floor to
"take care of this."

9:12:41 AM

CHAIR LYNN said he was not sure this was gernane to the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

9:12: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
begi nning on line 25, which he noted was a declaration of state
Arctic policy. He then directed attention to subsection (4), on
page 4, line [10], which states that the policy is to "val ue and
strengthen the resilience of conmunities and respect and
integrate the culture and know edge of Arctic peoples”,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- February 10, 2015



foll owing which he noted were five [subparagraphs]. He opi ned
that "it is germane in that section"” but would not be el sewhere.
He expressed uncertainty over the use of the term "docunent” in
Amendrent 1, because "using that term nay push the edges of
this." He indicated that he had no problem wi th acknow edgi ng
the wvalue of indigenous |anguages in the context of the
appreciation of the culture and know edge of the Arctic people.

9:14: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS said he would like to wthdraw
Amendrent 1, and he concurred with the bill sponsor's suggestion
regarding nmoving forward with HB 1. He expressed willingness to
work with the sponsor and any other interested legislators to
come up with something (indisc. -- overlapping voices).

CHAIR LYNN stated his intent had been to nove HB 1 out of
committee, but said if it was the will of the commttee, the
proposed | egislation could be heard again at a future date.

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS of fered his understanding that the
sponsor had tal ked about the potential for an anendnent nade on
t he House fl oor.

9:14: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opined that [anmending the bill] was the
work of the comm ttee.

9:15:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG concurred wth Representative Keller
and indicated that although the House Rules Standing Commttee,
as the next commttee of referral, could amend the bill, the
House State Affairs Standing Committee was "really nore set up
to do this."

CHAI R LYNN asked for the reconmendati on of the bill sponsor.
9:15:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON replied that even though the definition of
“"Arctic" on page 5, [lines 6-10], was accurate, he could not
enphasi ze enough that "you can't separate Alaska from the
Arctic." He said if the proposed bill was anmended to recognize
Al aska indigenous |anguages, it should recognize all of them
not just sone of them He said he would |ike the others on the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 10, 2015



comm ssion to consider such an anmendnent, but he recognized

there may be a need to hold the bill over for another hearing.
He reiterated that the bill already recognizes indigenous
peoples' cultures, and one of the foundations of culture is
| anguage. I n response to Chair Lynn, he said his recomendation

woul d be to wi t hdraw Amendnment 1.
9:18: 16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS withdrew his notion to adopt
Amendnent 1.

9:18: 21 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER reiterated he was ready to make a noti on.
9:18: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Representative Herron to clarify
what he thought about [the w thdrawn] Anendnent 1.

9:18:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON reiterated that he and his four other
coll eagues should have a conversation wth [Representative
Krei ss-Tonkins] to confirm or not confirm whether the term
"indi genous culture" includes indigenous |anguage. He concurred

that comnmttee work should not be done on the House floor. He
said he thought the Senate "should have that discussion, as
well."” He said that is why he had asked for the anendnent to be
wi t hdr awn.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested either the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee address the |anguage at its next
nmeeting, after the bill sponsor had had a chance to confer wth
his coll eagues, or that "we put the anmendnent in and you can
take it out."

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON responded on Representative Guenberg's
second point that that is not how he likes to do business. He
reiterated that the conm ssion believes that indigenous |anguage
i's included when speaking of culture.

9:20: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 1(EDA) out of
conmmttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 10, 2015



zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 1(EDA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

9:21:55 AM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:22
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 10, 2015



